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Personal Statement from the Editor...
Welcome to our spring issue of 2023, Narcotic Officers Magazine, Volume 12 Issue 1.  As always, I would 

like to thank each of you for advertising, your support, hard work and dedication. None of this is possible with-
out you. I am here to educate the public and law enforcement community in the awareness of narcotics, drugs, 
and other addictive substances. I also make every effort to support programs that teach kids, parents, and the law 
enforcement community about drug use.

We continue focusing our supported programs towards drug education, equipment donations, and k9 pro-
grams. We continue to produce a high-quality magazine to help promote the exchange of ideas and information 
among law enforcement agencies and support groups. We have found that our publication, Narcotic Officers 
Magazine, continues to be both educational and helpful to both public safety officials, and the public with an 
interest in drug safety and education. 

Moving forward, I’d like to share my knowledge and wisdom in hopes I can make someone or someplace 
better. This year it seems our nation is facing a lot of uncertainty. People’s lives, businesses, employers, and em-
ployees can all reflect this feeling. It’s how we approach it and handle it that can make all the difference in order 
to maintain sanity and a healthy environment. A article I read by Shonna Waters, PhD taught me a lot. I want to 
touch on why building great work relationships is more than just getting along. Building good work relation-
ships can have a huge impact on how much you enjoy your job. This is the power of strong professional rela-
tionships. Your coworkers might not be your best friends, and they don’t have to be. What they are is a talented 
group of individuals that can help you thrive at work.

Why is building good work relationships important? Workplace relationships are the interactions you have 
with your coworkers. You can evaluate how “good” the relationship is by your amicability, respect for each 
other, and ability to complete tasks together. Anyone who’s worked in a toxic workplace knows why good work 
relationships are important. Team members who don’t build trust will struggle to be productive. If no one gets 
along, it creates a poor team culture and negative work experience for you and others. It can even spread to the 
company culture, affecting the viability of your employer. Plus, if you don’t feel like you belong, it can harm 
your mental health and contribute to burnout. The same thing happens if you have a boss you don’t get along 
with. If you don’t have a good relationship with your boss, they might micromanage or prioritize other team 
members when opportunities arise. This can harm your job satisfaction and motivation to engage at work. Ulti-
mately, it can hold you back from succeeding in your career. (Continued on the next page.)

Our publication has always received outstanding support from the public and business community leaders 
across the nation. Our sponsors show their appreciation by taking out an advertisement in the Narcotic Officers 
Magazine, displaying their decals on their vehicles or place of business. Please support the advertisers whenever 
possible. The advertisers offer several goods and services that stretch across the nation. If possible, please try 
to support the businesses that advertise in the Narcotic Officers Magazine. You 
can follow us on our Facebook to stay up to date with the latest in equipment 
donations and news. Together, we can make a difference!

“Attitude is a choice. Happiness is a choice. Optimism is a choice. Kind-
ness is a choice. Giving is a choice. Respect is a choice. Whatever choice you 
make makes you. Choose wisely.” Roy T. Bennett, The Light in the Heart

Matt Neelley                                                                                                                                          
               Editor 
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The benefits of building good working relationships 

Increased job satisfaction. People often quit jobs or entire industries due to bad colleagues or managers. 
But when you build strong relationships, you can find purpose in your work all over again. Less discomfort 
during meetings. In a toxic workplace, people are afraid to speak up. But, with the help of good work 
relationships, you’ll feel empowered to share your ideas. More support from your colleagues. Work can be 
stressful. You’ll need moral and practical support when times get tough. Good work colleagues will step up 
for you when you ask, and you’ll do the same for them. A positive workplace starts with good leadership. You 
should feel supported and empowered to cultivate healthy relationships. In most cases, though, it’s up to you to 
integrate yourself into the team. Otherwise, you may want to quit your job to protect your well-being.

What types of relationships are important in the workplace?

Many types of work relationships contribute to a successful and productive workplace. And you might 
have a preference regarding the sorts of relationships you’re comfortable developing. Some people keep to 
themselves, while others are social butterflies. No matter your comfort level, here are the most important 
workplace relationships worth cultivating:  

Manager: The most important relationship you’ll likely have at work is with your manager. This is where 
you build trust and gain support. If the process isn’t already implemented, suggest weekly one-on-one meetings 
to develop a better relationship and create consistent communication. Feel free to do the same with coworkers 
you work closely with. This sets a good foundation for cultivating strong relationships all around. 

Teammates: Your relationship with your teammates affects how much you enjoy your job. You’ll feel 
happier about going to work if you look forward to joking around with a goofy coworker or discussing exciting 
vacation plans with a worldly supervisor. 

Clients and vendors: Your relationships with vendors and customers are crucial — without their support, 
the business wouldn’t exist. Even if you find a particular client challenging, remain professional and friendly to 
avoid negative vibes and cut ties. Speak with your manager if you’re worried an external relationship is at risk 
to see if it can be salvaged. 

Yourself: You can only develop positive relationships with others if you have one with yourself. But 
self-criticism and imposter syndrome makes this difficult. To combat challenges to your confidence, reflect on 
professional accomplishments and ask managers for positive feedback. Set boundaries and prioritize self-care, 
so you have the energy necessary to foster good work relationships.

	 Building good work relationships can take hard work. It requires time, patience, and self-awareness. 
But putting in emotional labor and producing good work relationships will help you feel more connected to 
colleagues and increase overall job satisfaction. Often, learning how to build rapport is the first step to building 
solid relationships. This provides the foundation needed to connect and empathize with others — and they’ll do 
the same for you.
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provide the best possible advertising exposure for our 
advertisers. We encourage our readers to patronize the 
businesses that make this publication possible.
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DEA Reports Widespread Threat of 
Fentanyl Mixed with Xylazine
WASHINGTON - The U.S. Drug 
Enforcement Administration is warning 
the American public of a sharp increase 
in the trafficking of fentanyl mixed 
with xylazine. Xylazine, also known as 
“Tranq,” is a powerful sedative that the 
U.S. Food and Drug Administration has 
approved for veterinary use.  

“Xylazine is making the deadliest drug 
threat our country has ever faced, fen-
tanyl, even deadlier,” said Administrator 
Milgram. “DEA has seized xylazine and 
fentanyl mixtures in 48 of 50 States. The 
DEA Laboratory System is reporting that 
in 2022 approximately 23% of fentanyl 
powder and 7% of fentanyl pills seized 
by the DEA contained xylazine.”

Xylazine and fentanyl drug mixtures 
place users at a higher risk of suffering a 
fatal drug poisoning. Because xylazine 
is not an opioid, naloxone (Narcan) does 
not reverse its effects. Still, experts al-

ways recommend administering naloxone 
if someone might be suffering a drug poi-
soning. People who inject drug mixtures 
containing xylazine also can develop 
severe wounds, including necrosis—the 
rotting of human tissue—that may lead to 
amputation.

According to the CDC, 107,735 Amer-
icans died between August 2021 and 
August 2022 from drug poisonings, with 
66 percent of those deaths involving syn-
thetic opioids like fentanyl. The Sinaloa 
Cartel and Jalisco Cartel in Mexico, using 
chemicals largely sourced from China, 
are primarily responsible for the vast 
majority of the fentanyl that is being traf-
ficked in communities across the United 
States.

FDA recently communicated to health 
care providers about the risks to patients 
exposed to xylazine in illicit drugs. A 
copy of that communication can be found 

here: FDA alerts healthcare professionals 
of risks to patients exposed to xylazine in 
illicit drugs. 

The DEA issues Public Safety Alerts to 
warn the public of new, emerging threats 
to the safety and health of the American 
people. The DEA last issued a Public 
Safety Alert in September 2021 warning 
the public about increases in the lethality 
and availability of fentanyl-laced fake 
prescription pills. The DEA updated that 
alert in November 2022 warning that six 
out of ten fentanyl-laced fake prescription 
pills contain a potentially lethal dose of 
fentanyl.

United States Drug Enforcement 
Administration. DEA Reports Wide-
spread Threat of Fentanyl Mixed with 
Xylazine | DEA.gov. (n.d.). Retrieved 
April 7, 2023, from https://www.dea.
gov/alert/dea-reports-widespread-
threat-fentanyl-mixed-xylazine 
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DEA's Community Outreach Section
DEA’s primary mission and responsibility 
as a law enforcement agency is to enforce 
the Nation’s federal drug laws.

DEA recognizes that not only reducing 
the quantity (supply) of drugs is essential 
to a safe and drug free country, but also 
reducing the desire (demand) for illicit 
drugs is a vital component to effectively 
reduce drug use in our Nation. For that 
reason, DEA created the Community 
Outreach Section as a critical comple-
ment to our primary law enforcement 
mission and included drug use prevention 
as one of the seven priorities in DEA’s 
vision:

“Support initiatives to reduce the demand 
for drugs and give assistance to com-
munity coalitions and drug prevention 
initiatives.”

DEA’s Community Outreach Section pro-
vides the public with current and relevant 
drug information about illicit drug use, 
the misuse of prescription drugs, drug use 
trends, and the health consequences of 
drug use.

The Community Outreach Section also 
develops drug information brochures, 
drug fact sheets, pamphlets, and parent/
teacher drug education guides to assist 
the community in identifying drug use 
and finding help.

Another major component of the Com-
munity Outreach Section is collabora-
tion with various drug use prevention 
partners. These partners include other 
federal agencies, national and regional 
prevention organizations, law enforce-
ment organizations, community coali-
tions, fraternal and civic organizations, 
youth-serving organizations, state and 
local governments, and school districts. 
DEA supports our partners, who present 
significant opportunities for involvement 
in prevention efforts by providing drug 
trend information at local community 
events as well as at national conferences 
and professional educational forums.  

DEA’s Community Outreach Strategy

DEA’s Community Outreach strategy is 
to develop and disseminate effective drug 
information for youth, parents, caregiv-

ers, and educators, and to increase the 
public’s awareness about the dangers as-
sociated with using drugs. There are three 
major concepts of drug use prevention 
research at the core of this strategy:

•	 Parents and teens alike need to know 
that the brain continues to develop 
to age 25. In particular, the frontal 
cortex, which carries out mental 
processes such as thinking, decision 
making, and judgment, is not fully 
developed until that age; therefore, 
it’s vitally important that youth and 
young adults refrain from drug use 
as this use will affect brain develop-
ment.

•	 When youth and young adults 
perceive that drug use is harmful and 
risky, drug use dramatically declines.

•	 The longer youth and young adults 
delay drug use, addiction and/or sub-
stance use disorders are significantly 
reduced.

Websites

DEA provides essential information 
about the harmful effects of illicit drug 
use through our educational materials and 
three websites.

Just Think Twice

DEA’s website for teens, www.justthink-
twice.gov, provides credible information 
about the harmful effects of drug use. The 
site includes information about various 
drugs, including facts and fiction about 
drugs, the consequences of drug use, as 
well as topics about addiction, impaired 
driving, and true stories about teens that 
have had drug problems.

The site provides descriptions of specific 
drugs, such as marijuana, Spice/K2, bath 
salts, and heroin, as well as the drugs’ 
street names, effect on the mind and 
body, overdose effects, legal status, and 
origin.

Get Smart About Drugs

DEA’s website for parents, www.
GetSmartAboutDrugs.gov, provides 
valuable drug education information 
for parents, educators, and caregivers 

to further help identify drug use, drug 
paraphernalia, warning signs of drug use, 
and the harmful side effects of the most 
commonly abused drugs.

The site features several downloadable 
publications including “Growing Up 
Drug-Free: A Parent’s Guide to Pre-
vention,” “Prescription for Disaster: 
How Teens Abuse Medicine,” and “The 
Dangers and Consequences of Marijuana 
Abuse.”

Campus Drug Prevention

www.campusdrugprevention.gov is 
DEA’s latest effort to support drug abuse 
prevention programs on college campuses 
and in surrounding communities. The 
website was created for professionals 
working to prevent drug abuse among 
college students, including educators, 
student health centers, and student affairs 
personnel. In addition, it serves as a use-
ful tool for college students, parents, and 
others involved in campus communities.

The website offers valuable informa-
tion, including data, news updates, drug 
scheduling and penalties, publications, 
research, national and statewide confer-
ences and events, state and local preven-
tion contacts, and resources available 
from DEA’s federal partners. The website 
also includes a “Help a Friend” resource 
to educate and prepare those who plan to 
talk to their friends or loved ones about 
drug use concerns.

Publications

For a list of all of DEA’s publications 
that can be downloaded, go to www.
getsmartaboutdrugs.gov and click on 
Publications.

For more information about DEA’s 
Community Outreach Section, or for 
more drug prevention resources, contact 
the Community Outreach Section at 202-
307-7936 or by e-mail at Community.
Outreach@usdoj.gov.

Community outreach. DEA. (n.d.). 
Retrieved April 7, 2023, from https://
www.dea.gov/education-prevention/
community-outreach 
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DEA Press Releases January-March
St. Louis Man Sentenced to 10+ Years 
in Prison for Fentanyl, Guns

March 30, 2023

ST. LOUIS – A man caught twice in St. 
Louis, Missouri with guns and fentanyl 
after police chases that ended in crashes 
was sentenced Thursday to 10 years and 
10 months in prison. Geno Armstrong, 
28, pleaded guilty Nov. 30, 2022, to 
two counts of possession with intent to 
distribute...

Nine Charged Following Investigation 
into Manufacturing and Interstate 
Trafficking of Counterfeit Oxycodone 
Pills Containing Fentanyl

March 29, 2023

Following a long-term wiretap investiga-
tion into the manufacturing and interstate 
trafficking of counterfeit oxycodone pills 
containing fentanyl, nine individuals 
were indicted on charges filed by the Of-
fice of the Special Narcotics Prosecutor 
(SNP) in Manhattan Supreme Court. The 
charges stem from narcotics-related activ-
ity that allegedly occurred in Manhattan, 
the Bronx...

Drug Ring Tied to Aryan Prison Gang 
Indicted With 24 Federal Arrests

March 27, 2023

TACOMA, Wash. – Twenty-seven people 
were indicted by a grand jury for drug 
trafficking, and many of those in the 
indictment are tied to the “Aryan Fam-
ily,” a white supremacist prison gang, 
announced U.S. Attorney Nick Brown. 
Twenty-four of the defendants have been 
arrested over the last five days in...

Corpus Christi Man Arrested for 
Selling Fentanyl-Laced Pills Causing 
Death

March 24, 2023

CORPUS CHRISTI, Texas – A 21-year-
old Corpus Christi man has been charged 
with delivery of fentanyl resulting in 
death and possession of fentanyl with the 
intent to distribute, announced Drug En-
forcement Administration (DEA) Special 
Agent in Charge Daniel C. Comeaux, 

Houston Division and U.S. Attorney 
Alamdar S. Hamdani. Authorities arrest-
ed...

Former Rochester, New Hampshire 
Man Sentenced To 68 Months For 
Conspiracy To Distribute Fentanyl

March 24, 2023

CONCORD, N.H. – Craig Wiggin, 44, 
formerly of Rochester, New Hampshire 
was sentenced to 68 months in federal 
prison for conspiracy to distribute con-
trolled substances, United States Attorney 
Jane E. Young has announced. According 
to court documents and statements made 
in court, in July 2021, Wiggin conspired 
with other individuals...

Two Waterbury Residents Involved In 
Fentanyl And Heroin Trafficking Ring 
Sentenced To Prison

March 24, 2023

WATERBURY, Conn. - Vanessa Roberts 
Avery, United States Attorney for the 
District of Connecticut, announced that 
two Waterbury residents were sentenced 
today by U.S. District Judge Vanessa L. 
Bryant in Hartford for their participa-
tion in a fentanyl and heroin trafficking 
organization. ELIAS SANCHEZ-MAR-
TINEZ, 31, was sentenced to 135 months 
of...

Brittany Busby Sentenced to 28 
Months in Prison for Distributing Fen-
tanyl at Northern Lights Transitional 
House

March 24, 2023

BURLINGTNON, Vt. - The United 
States Attorney’s Office stated that Brit-
tany Busby, 31, formerly of Washington, 
Vermont, was sentenced on March 15, 
2023 in United States District Court in 
Rutland to 28 months of imprisonment 
following her guilty plea to distributing 
fentanyl. U.S. Chief District Judge Geof-
frey Crawford also ordered...

New Haven Man Guilty Of Narcotics 
And Firearms Offenses

March 24, 2023

NEW HAVEN, Conn. - Vanessa Roberts 

Avery, United States Attorney for the Dis-
trict of Connecticut, has announced that 
a federal jury in New Haven has found 
DONELL ALLICK, JR., also known as 
“D-Nice,” 24, guilty of narcotics offenses. 
Following the trial and before the jury 
returned its verdict, Allick also...

Mexican Man Pleads Guilty To Illegal-
ly Re-Entering The United States And 
Trafficking Fentanyl

March 24, 2023

BOSTON – A Mexican man residing in 
Lawrence pleaded guilty to possessing 
fentanyl intended for distribution and to 
illegally re-entering the United States 
after deportation. Jesus Gracielo Gar-
cia-Vega a/k/a Jonathan Ivan Badillo-Her-
nandez, 35, pleaded guilty to one count 
of possession with intent to distribute 
fentanyl, and one count of unlawful...

Massachusetts Man Sentenced To Over 
12 Years Imprisonment For Fentanyl 
Distribution Conspiracy

March 24, 2023

CONCORD, N.H. – Mikael Canario-Ba-
tista, 47, of Lawrence, Massachusetts, 
was sentenced to 151 months in fed-
eral prison for conspiring to distribute 
fentanyl, United States Attorney Jane E. 
Young has announced. According to court 
documents and statements made in court, 
Canario-Batista was part of a drug-distri-
bution conspiracy operating in Lawrence, 
Massachusetts...

Spouse and Cousin of Drug Trafficking 
Ringleader Sentenced to Significant 
Prison Terms for Their Roles in Drug 
Distribution Conspiracy

March 23, 2023

SEATTLE – Two members of a drug traf-
ficking ring that buried drugs and cash on 
a rural property near Arlington, Washing-
ton, were sentenced today in U.S. District 
Court in Seattle, announced U.S. Attorney 
Nick Brown. Jose Arrondondo-Valdez, 
27, was sentenced to nine years in prison 
and Yvette Olguin, 40, was...
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Man Sentenced to 10 Years After Being 
Caught with Fentanyl, Methamphet-
amine

March 23, 2023

ST. LOUIS – U.S. District Judge Rod-
ney W. Sippel on Thursday sentenced a 
man caught with methamphetamine and 
fentanyl to 10 years in prison. Antoine 
Demetrius Meeks, 31, was caught by 
the O’Fallon Police Department with 
208 grams of methamphetamine and 26 
grams of fentanyl during an August 19, 
2022...

Man Charged Following Seizure of 
Over One Million Suspected Fentanyl 
Pills

March 22, 2023

PHOENIX, Ariz. – Juan Alfonso Tor-
res-Rodriguez, 27, of Mexico, was 
charged by criminal complaint on March 
9, 2023, with one count of Possessing 
Suspected Fentanyl Pills for Distribu-
tion. The complaint alleges that, on the 
evening of March 8, 2023, law enforce-
ment officers observed Torres-Rodriguez 
participating in a suspected drug transac-
tion...

Eight Men Charged with Fentanyl 
Trafficking

March 21, 2023

NEWARK, N.J. – Acting Special Agent 
in Charge of the Drug Enforcement 
Administration’s New Jersey Division 
Daniel J. Kafafian and U.S. Attorney for 
the District of New Jersey Philip R. Sell-
inger announced eight men were charged 
today for their roles in a drug trafficking 
organization operating in and around 
Union...

Armed Leader of Fentanyl and Co-
caine Distribution Conspiracy Sen-
tenced to 40 Years in Federal Prison

March 21, 2023

ORLANDO, Fla. – U.S. District Judge 
Roy B. Dalton Jr. sentenced Carlos Ro-
man (57, Orlando) to 40 years in federal 
prison for possession of cocaine and 
possession of a firearm equipped with a 
silencer in furtherance of drug trafficking. 
Judge Dalton also sentenced three indi-
viduals who conspired with Roman to...

Tampa Man Arrested for Possessing 
Fentanyl with the Intent to Distribute

March 21, 2023

TAMPA, Fla. –United States Attorney 
Roger B. Handberg announced the arrest 
of Perry Ivory Wims (37, Tampa) on a 
criminal complaint charging possession 
with intent to distribute a controlled 
substance. Wims was arrested on March 
9, 2023 and ordered detained pending 
the outcome of his case. According to the 
complaint...

Jamestown Man Pleads Guilty to Drug 
Conspiracy Which Resulted in Fatal 
Ovedose

March 16, 2023

BUFFALO, N.Y.-U.S. Attorney Trini 
E. Ross announced today that Ryan A. 
Bloom, 37, of Jamestown, NY, pleaded 
guilty before U.S. District Judge John 
L. Sinatra, Jr. to conspiracy to possess 
with intent to distribute, and to distribute, 
heroin, fentanyl, and methamphetamine, 
which carries a maximum penalty of 20 
years in...

Bryan County Man Convicted on 
Federal Drug Charges for Trafficking 
Fentanyl

March 14, 2023

SAVANNAH, GA: A Bryan County man 
could face decades in federal prison for 
trafficking fentanyl. Javarus McKinney, 
a/k/a “Jody,” 34, of Richmond Hill, Ga., 
was convicted after a four-day trial on 
charges of Conspiracy to Possess with 
Intent to Distribute, and to Distribute, 
Fentanyl; Possession with Intent to Dis-
tribute and...

Man Indicted for Meth, Fentanyl, 
Illegal Firearm

March 14, 2023

KANSAS CITY, Mo. – A Columbia, 
Mo., man was indicted by a federal grand 
jury today after he was arrested in St. 
Joseph, Mo., with methamphetamine and 
a firearm, then again in Kansas City, Mo., 
with approximately 2,300 fentanyl pills. 
Walter Antwine Moore, 42, was charged 
in a four-count indictment...

Leader of Waycross-Area Drug 
Trafficking Conspiracy Sentenced to 
Decades in Federal Prison

March 13, 2023

WAYCROSS, GA: The leader of a south 
Georgia fentanyl- and heroin-trafficking 
operation linked to drug overdose deaths 
has been sentenced to more than 20 years 
in federal prison. Eric Lashawn Hayes, 
a/k/a “Pee Wee,” 39, of Blackshear, Ga., 
was sentenced to 262 months in prison 
after previously pleading guilty to...

California Men Admit Conspiring to 
Distribute Fentanyl and Meth

March 13, 2023

NEWARK, N.J. – Acting Special Agent 
in Charge of the Drug Enforcement Ad-
ministration’s New Jersey Division Dan-
iel J. Kafafian and U.S. Attorney for the 
District of New Jersey Philip R. Sellinger 
announced two California men admitted 
conspiring to distribute and possess with 
intent to distribute fentanyl and metham-
phetamine in New...

Two North Shore Men Indicted for 
Drug Conspiracy Involving Tens of 
Thousands of Counterfeit Pills

March 13, 2023

BOSTON – Two men from the North 
Shore have been indicted by a feder-
al grand jury in Boston in connection 
with a drug conspiracy involving tens 
of thousands of counterfeit pills con-
taining methamphetamine and fentanyl. 
Charles Bates, 31, of Reading, and Aaron 
Lenardis, 36, of Saugus, were indicted on 
one...

Jury Finds Waterbury Man Guilty of 
Narcotics Distribution and Firearm 
Possession Offenses

March 13, 2023

WATERBURY, Conn. - Vanessa Roberts 
Avery, United States Attorney for the Dis-
trict of Connecticut, today announced that 
a federal jury in New Haven has found 
RAMON OQUENDO, also known as 
“Mimo,” 46, of Waterbury, guilty of nar-
cotics trafficking and firearm possession 
offenses. The trial before U.S. District 
Judge Janet C...
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Dover Man Pleads Guilty to Distribu-
tion of Fentanyl and Possession with 
Intent to Distribute Fentanyl

March 13, 2023

CONCORD, N.H. – Tyler Ward, 36, of 
Dover, has plead guilty in federal court 
to two counts of distributing fentanyl and 
one count of possessing fentanyl with 
intent to distribute it, United States Attor-
ney Jane E. Young announced. According 
to court documents and statements made 
in court, Mr. Ward distributed...

Massachusetts Man Sentenced to 45 
Months Imprisonment for Fentanyl 
Distribution Conspiracy

March 13, 2023

CONCORD, N.H. – Carlos Ozuna, 
51, of Lawrence, Massachusetts, was 
sentenced to 45 months in federal prison 
for a drug-distribution conspiracy, United 
States Attorney Jane E. Young announced 
today. According to court documents and 
statements made in court, Ozuna was part 
of a drug-distribution conspiracy operat-
ing in Lawrence, Massachusetts that...

New Britain Fentanyl Dealer Sen-
tenced to More than 6 Years in Federal 
Prison

March 13, 2023

NEW BRITAIN, Conn. - Vanessa Rob-
erts Avery, United States Attorney for the 
District of Connecticut, today announced 
that ROBERTO MERCEDES-RO-
DRIGUEZ, 43, of New Britain, was 
sentenced yesterday by U.S. District 
Judge Robert N. Chatigny in Hartford 
to 78 months of imprisonment, followed 
by four years of supervised release, for 
fentanyl...

Lawrence Man Sentenced for Fentanyl 
Distribution

March 13, 2023

BOSTON – A Lawrence man has been 
sentenced for his role in distributing fen-
tanyl. Albert Ventura, 23, was sentenced 
by U.S. District Court Judge Denise J. 
Casper to 32 months in prison and three 
years of supervised release. In Novem-
ber 2022, Ventura pleaded guilty to two 
counts of distribution and...

Kent, Washington, Resident Indicted 
for Dealing Fentanyl While Illegally 
Possessing a Firearm

March 10, 2023

SEATTLE – A 36-year-old Kent, Wash-
ington, resident was indicted by a grand 
jury for trafficking narcotics while illegal-
ly possessing a firearm, announced U.S. 
Attorney Nick Brown. Mohamed Aweys 
Muse is charged with possession of 
fentanyl with intent to distribute, posses-
sion of a firearm in furtherance of a drug 
trafficking crime...

Source of Supply for Carrollton Fen-
tanyl Trafficker Charged

March 10, 2023

DALLAS, TX - A Flower Mound man 
who supplied fentanyl to a trafficker 
linked to at least one juvenile overdose 
has been federally charged, announce 
Eduardo A. Chávez. Stephen Paul Brin-
son, 18, was arrested in Flower Mound 
on Wednesday, charged via criminal 
complaint with conspiracy to distribute a 
schedule II-controlled...

Armed Fentanyl Trafficker Sentenced 
to Life in Prison for Causing Fatal 
Overdose

March 10, 2023

TAMPA, Fla. – U.S. District Judge Char-
lene Edwards Honeywell has sentenced 
Justin Kelly (36, New Port Richey) to 
concurrent terms of life in prison for con-
spiracy to distribute 40 grams of fentanyl 
resulting in death and distribution of 
fentanyl resulting in death, and 15 years’ 
imprisonment for three counts of...

Washington Man Sentenced to 12 
Years in Prison for Shooting in Tri-Cit-
ies and Conspiring to Distribute Fen-
tanyl-Laced Pills

March 09, 2023

RICHLAND, Wash.– On March 8, 
2023, Senior United States District Judge 
Edward F. Shea sentenced Jonathan Scott 
Ard, 30, of Richland, Washington, to 12 
years in in federal prison after his guilty 
plea to federal fentanyl and gun charges. 
Ard will also serve 5 years of federal 
supervision after he...

Indiana Man Sentenced to 10 Years for 
Drug Trafficking, Gun Crimes

March 09, 2023

FORT WAYNE, Ind. – Alfred A. Cooke, 
Assistant Special Agent in Charge of 
Drug Enforcement Administration-Mer-
rillville, Indiana, and U.S. Attorney Clif-
ford D. Johnson for the Northern District 
of Indiana announced that Calvin Brant-
ley, age 25, of Fort Wayne, was sentenced 
before U.S. District Court Judge Holly A. 
Brady after pleading...

Indianapolis Man Sentenced to 16 
Years for Fentanyl, Meth Trafficking

March 06, 2023

INDIANAPOLIS - Michael Gannon, As-
sistant Special Agent in Charge for Drug 
Enforcement Administration-Indianapo-
lis, and U.S. Attorney Zachary A. Myers 
for the Southern District of Indiana 
announced that Dreshaun Carter, 26, of 
Indianapolis, was sentenced to 16 years 
in federal prison after pleading guilty to 
distributing fentanyl and methamphet-
amine. According to...

Seven Indicted in Seattle in Connection 
with Coast-to-Coast Drug Trafficking 
Conspiracy

March 03, 2023

SEATTLE – Seven people have been 
indicted in the Western District of Wash-
ington in an investigation that began 
with a drug trafficking ring in Pittsburgh, 
Pennsylvania, announced U.S. Attorney 
Nick Brown. Over the past 36 hours, law 
enforcement has taken all of the defen-
dants into custody, with three arrested 
in...

Idaho Woman Sentenced to 12 Years 
in Federal Prison for Possession with 
Intent to Distribute 15 Pounds of 
Fentanyl

March 02, 2023

BOISE, Id. – Wathana Insixiengmay, 34, 
of Nampa, was sentenced to 144 months 
in federal prison for possessing, with the 
intent to distribute, 15 pounds of fentanyl, 
U.S. Attorney Josh Hurwit announced 
today. According to court records, Insix-
iengmay was a main fentanyl distributor 
for a large drug trafficking organization 
with...
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Joplin, Webb City Man Indicted for 
Drug Trafficking, Illegal Firearms

February 28, 2023

SPRINGFIELD, Mo. – A Joplin and 
Webb City, Mo., man was indicted by a 
federal grand jury today for drug traf-
ficking and illegally possessing firearms. 
Milan Alexander, 42, who maintains 
residences in both Joplin and Webb City, 
was charged in a four-count indictment 
returned by a federal grand jury in...

McMinnville, Oregon Man Faces 
Federal Charges for Selling Fentanyl 
That Caused Seven to Overdose, One 
Fatally

February 28, 2023

PORTLAND, Ore.—A McMinnville, Or-
egon man is facing federal charges after 
selling fentanyl he claimed was cocaine 
that caused seven people to overdose, 
one fatally. John Kyle Donnahoo, 28, has 
been charged by criminal complaint with 
distribution of fentanyl resulting in seri-
ous bodily injury and death. According to 
court documents, on...

Local Leader of Violent Drug Traf-
ficking Ring Sentenced to 12+ Years in 
Prison

February 28, 2023

SEATTLE – One of the leaders of a 
violent international drug trafficking 
organization that distributed heroin, 
fentanyl, and methamphetamine in the 
Puget Sound region was sentenced today 
in U.S. District Court in Seattle to more 
than 12 years in prison, announced U.S. 
Attorney Nick Brown. Jose Elias Barbo-
sa, 37, of...

Bulk Fentanyl Trafficker is Convicted 
of Drug and Gun Charges

February 27, 2023

STATESVILLE, N.C. – A federal jury in 
Statesville returned a guilty verdict today 
against Jermaine Douglas Grandy for 
trafficking fentanyl and illegal possession 
of firearms, announced Dena J. King, 
U.S. Attorney for the Western District of 
North Carolina. Grandy, 41, of Lenoir, 
N.C., was convicted of conspiracy to 
distribute and...

Former Wethersfield Resident Pleads 
Guilty to Meth, Fentanyl and Cocaine 
Distribution Charge

February 27, 2023

WETHERSFIELD, Conn. - Vanessa 
Roberts Avery, United States Attorney 
for the District of Connecticut, Brian 
D. Boyle, Special Agent in Charge of 
the Drug Enforcement Administration 
for New England, Ketty Larco-Ward, 
Inspector in Charge of the U.S. Postal 
Inspection Service, Boston Division, and 
Wethersfield Police Chief Rafael Medina, 
announced that...

Haverhill Fentanyl Pill Distributor 
Arrested for Trafficking Tens of Thou-
sands of Counterfeit Pills

February 27, 2023

BOSTON – A Haverhill man has been ar-
rested and charged for allegedly manufac-
turing and distributing tens of thousands 
of counterfeit prescription pills containing 
fentanyl in the Lawrence and Boston 
areas. Angel Joel Diaz, a/k/a “Guero,” 34, 
was charged by criminal complaint with 
distribution of and possession with intent 
to distribute...

Former Methuen Man Sentenced for 
Fentanyl and Cocaine Trafficking 
Conspiracy

February 27, 2023

BOSTON – A former Methuen man was 
sentenced today in federal court in Bos-
ton for his role in a Lawrence-based drug 
trafficking conspiracy involving fentanyl 
and cocaine. Pablo Rosario Pablo a/k/a 
“Angel Ayala Roque” a/k/a “Cuco,” 57, 
was sentenced by U.S. District Court 
Judge Angel Kelley to 41 months in...

Cumberland Man Sentenced to Ten 
Years in Federal Prison in Largest 
Counterfeit Pill Seizure

February 27, 2023

PROVIDENCE, R.I. – A Cumberland 
man who admitted to possessing approx-
imately 665,728 methamphetamine-laced 
counterfeit Adderall® pills, the largest 
known seizure of its kind in the country, 
has been sentenced to ten years in federal 
prison, announced United States Attorney 
Zachary A. Cunha. Dylan Rodas, 27, has 
been detained since his...

Tyler Orvis Indicted for Federal Drug 
Crimes

February 27, 2023

BURLINGTON, Vt. - The Office of the 
United States Attorney for the District 
of Vermont stated that on February 21, 
2023, Tyler Orvis, 40, of Milton, Ver-
mont, was arrested in connection with 
an indictment charging violations of 
the federal Controlled Substances Act 
for drug trafficking and related activity. 
According to...

Armed Drug Dealer at Seattle’s Third 
and Pike Sentenced to Five Years in 
Prison

February 24, 2023

SEATTLE – A 31-year-old Seattle man 
was sentenced today in U.S. District 
Court in Seattle to five years in prison for 
federal crimes related to his distribution 
of fentanyl pills in downtown Seattle 
and his armed shoplifting in Bellevue, 
announced U.S. Attorney Nick Brown. 
Kendall Alston was arrested on March...

Man Indicted on Drug and Gun 
Charges

February 23, 2023

ST. LOUIS – A man from St. Louis, 
Missouri accused of involvement in a 
convenience store shootout was indicted 
Wednesday on drug and gun charges. 
Kennis Body, 25, was indicted on a drug 
conspiracy count, one count of possession 
with the intent to distribute controlled 
substances and one count of...

DEA, Arizona Attorney General & 
Tempe Police Announce 150+ Subjects 
Charged & Massive Quantities of Nar-
cotics Seized

February 23, 2023

PHOENIX– Today, DEA in partnership 
with the Arizona Attorney General’s Of-
fice and the Tempe Police Department an-
nounced the culmination of a three-year 
long investigation targeting the Sinaloa 
Drug Cartel. To date, over 150 individu-
als have been charged and investigators 
have seized over 4.5 million fentanyl 
laced fake prescription pills, 66...
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Two Indicted After Drug Shipment In-
tercepted on Interstate 44 in St. Louis 
County

February 17, 2023

ST. LOUIS – A man from Texas and a 
woman from St. Louis were indicted 
Wednesday on drug conspiracy charges 
after multiple kilograms of suspected 
fentanyl and methamphetamine were 
found during a traffic stop on Interstate 
44 in St. Louis County. Francisco Manuel 
Mata-Martinez, 41, of El Paso, was 
indicted...

Lawrence Man Sentenced to 8 Years in 
Prison for Distributing Fentanyl Pills 
Produced Using Multiple Pill Press 
Machines

February 16, 2023

BOSTON – A Lawrence man was sen-
tenced today in federal court in Boston 
for distributing counterfeit prescription 
pills containing fentanyl, made using 
multiple pill press machines. Miguel 
Angel Fajardo, 32, was sentenced by U.S. 
District Court Judge Nathaniel M. Gorton 
to eight years in prison and two years of 
supervised...

Indictment Charges 3 Men with Fen-
tanyl Trafficking Offenses

February 16, 2023

HARTFORD, Conn. - Vanessa Roberts 
Avery, United States Attorney for the Dis-
trict of Connecticut, and Brian D. Boyle, 
Special Agent in Charge of the Drug 
Enforcement Administration for New 
England, today announced that a federal 
grand jury has returned an indictment 
charging ISSACHAMIL TORRES, also 
known as “Chamil,” 35, of...

Providence Man Admits to Possessing 
More than Forty Grams of Fentanyl 
Six Days After Pleading Guilty to Traf-
ficking Anabolic Steroids

February 16, 2023

PROVIDENCE, R.I. – A 30-year-old 
Providence man today admitted to a 
federal judge that he possessed more than 
250 grams of fentanyl and a firearm, and 
did so less than a week after pleading 
guilty, in February 2021, to conspiracy to 
distribute anabolic steroids, announced 
United States Attorney Zachary A...

Man Sentenced to 18 Years in Prison 
for Drug-Linked St. Louis Murder

February 15, 2023

ST. LOUIS – U.S. District Judge Ronnie 
L. White on Wednesday sentenced a man 
from St. Louis, Missouri who participat-
ed in a 2017 murder on behalf of a drug 
gang to 18 years in prison. Tremayne 
Silas, 30, was one of four men who fired 
more than 100 rounds at...

Berkeley Resident Sentenced to Four 
Years in Prison in Tenderloin Fentanyl 
Distribution Scheme

February 13, 2023

SAN FRANCISCO – David Ordonez 
was sentenced to 48 months in prison for 
his role in a scheme to distribute fentanyl 
and methamphetamine in the Tenderloin 
District of San Francisco, announced 
United States Attorney Stephanie M. 
Hinds and Drug Enforcement Adminis-
tration (DEA) Acting Special Agent in 
Charge Bob P. Beris...

Fentanyl Pill Press Operator Sentenced 
to 30 Years in Federal Prison

February 10, 2023

DALLAS, TX - Saginaw man running a 
fentanyl pill-pressing operation was sen-
tenced Friday to 30 years in federal pris-
on, announced Special Agent in Charge 
of DEA Dallas Eduardo A. Chávez. 
Adrian Warren, 33, aka “Peanut,” pleaded 
guilty in October 2022 to possession with 
intent to distribute controlled substances. 
He was...

Sixteen Individuals Plead Guilty in 
Drug Trafficking Conspiracy “Opera-
tion Titan Fall”

February 10, 2023

ORLANDO, Fla. – United States Attor-
ney Roger B. Handberg announces that 
16 individuals, charged in three (3) in-
dictments, have all pleaded guilty to their 
respective roles in conspiring to distribute 
controlled substances, including fentanyl 
and cocaine, in the Drug Enforcement 
Administration’s (DEA) “Operation Titan 
Fall” investigation. This investigation 
yielded evidence...

Deadly Fentanyl Trafficked in Protein 
Powder Containers

February 08, 2023

NEW YORK CITY - Damian Wil-
liams, the United States Attorney for the 
Southern District of New York, Frank A. 
Tarentino III, the Special Agent in Charge 
of the New York Field Office of the Drug 
Enforcement Administration (“DEA”), 
Keechant L. Sewell, the Commissioner of 
the New York City Police Department...

Final Defendants Convicted in Com-
plex, 20-Person Federal Fentanyl and 
Meth Trafficking Conspiracy

February 08, 2023

INDIANAPOLIS – Michael Gannon, 
Assistant Special Agent in Charge of 
Drug Enforcement Administration-Indi-
anapolis, and U.S. Attorney Zachary A. 
Myers for the Southern District of Indiana 
announced that a federal jury has found 
Rick Coley, 36, of Indianapolis, and Da-
vid Duggar, 40, of Greenwood, Indiana, 
guilty on all counts following an...

Three More Defendants Indicted in 
Northwest MO Fentanyl Conspiracy

February 06, 2023

KANSAS CITY, Mo. – Three more de-
fendants have been indicted in a 10-per-
son conspiracy to distribute fentanyl in 
northwest Missouri. Kaden Bernard, 22, 
of St. Joseph, Mo., Raymundo Felix-Pe-
rez, 31, a citizen of Mexico who resided 
in Bethany, Mo., and Joshua Stramel, 26, 
of Kansas City, Kan., were charged in...

Hartford Woman Sentenced to Prison 
for Distributing Fentanyl

February 03, 2023

HARTFORD, Conn. - Vanessa Roberts 
Avery, United States Attorney for the 
District of Connecticut, announced that 
MARIA MALDONADO, 50, of Hart-
ford, was sentenced today by U.S. Dis-
trict Judge Janet C. Hall in New Haven 
to 24 months of imprisonment, followed 
by three years of supervised release, for 
distributing fentanyl. According...
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Armed Drug Trafficker with Multiple 
Criminal Convictions is Sentenced to 
26 Years in Prison

February 02, 2023

ASHEVILLE, NC – U.S. Attorney Dena 
J. King announced today that Benjamin 
Dann Owens, 36, of Hayesville, N.C., 
was sentenced to 312 months in prison 
followed by five years of supervised 
release for conspiracy to distribute and to 
possess with intent to distribute fentan-
yl, methamphetamine, Oxycodone, and 
other narcotics as...

Woman Who Dealt Drugs From Her 
Lake Stevens Restaurant Sentenced to 
10 Years in Prison

February 02, 2023

SEATTLE – A 46-year-old Marysville, 
Washington woman, who co-owned a 
Lake Stevens, Washington restaurant 
used for drug trafficking, was sentenced 
today in U.S. District Court in Seattle 
to ten years in prison for distributing 
methamphetamine, heroin, and fentanyl, 
announced U.S. Attorney Nick Brown. 
Laura Rodriguez-Moreno has been in 
custody since...

Rock Hill Woman Sentenced to Feder-
al Prison for Involvement in Fentanyl 
Distribution Ring

February 02, 2023

COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA — 
Patricia Ann Hemphill, 51, of Rock Hill, 
was sentenced to 3 years in federal prison 
after pleading guilty relating to a multi-
state drug operation out of the Rock Hill 
and Charlotte, North Carolina area. Evi-
dence presented to the Court showed that 
the Federal Bureau of Investigation...

Drug Trafficking Ringleader, Who Hid 
Huge Amounts of Drugs and Cash in 
Arlington, Sentenced to 15 Years

January 31, 2023

Seattle – The leader of a violent, prolific 
drug trafficking ring was sentenced today 
in U.S. District Court in Seattle to 15 
years in prison, announced U.S. Attorney 
Nick Brown. Cesar Valdez-Sanudo, 36, 
pleaded guilty in June 2022 to conspir-
acy to distribute controlled substances, 
conspiracy to commit money laundering 
and...

Renton, Washington, Mid-Level Lead-
er of Local Drug Trafficking Group 
Connected to CJNG Cartel, Sentenced 
to Prison

January 31, 2023

Seattle – The mid-level leader of a drug 
distribution cell that was one of the most 
violent seen in the Western District of 
Washington was sentenced today in U.S. 
District Court in Seattle to ten years in 
prison, announced U.S. Attorney Nick 
Brown. Jose Daniel Espinoza, 35, was 
indicted and...

Prince William Drug Dealer Sentenced 
for Causing Multiple Overdoses

January 30, 2023

ALEXANDRIA, Va. – A Dumfries man 
was sentenced today to 30 years in prison 
for distribution of fentanyl resulting 
in death and serious bodily injury, and 
possession with the intent to distribute 
fentanyl. According to court documents, 
on September 21, 2021, Michael Vaughn, 
28, distributed cocaine laced with fentan-
yl at...

Leader of Drug Delivery Service Re-
sponsible for Three Fentanyl Poisoning 
Deaths Convicted

January 30, 2023

NY., - Damian Williams, the United 
States Attorney for the Southern District 
of New York, announced the convic-
tion in Manhattan federal court of Billy 
Ortega, a/k/a “Jason,” for distributing 
the fentanyl that killed three young New 
York City professionals: Julia Ghahrama-
ni, Amanda Scher, and Ross Mtangi. The 
jury convicted Ortega...

Man Pleads Guilty to Distributing Fen-
tanyl That Caused Fatal Overdose

January 30, 2023

KANSAS CITY, Mo. – A Rock Port, 
Mo., man pleaded guilty in federal court 
today to selling fentanyl to another Atchi-
son County, Mo., man that resulted in his 
fatal overdose. Quentin W. Carder, 23, 
pleaded guilty before U.S. District Judge 
Howard F. Sachs to one count of conspir-
acy to distribute...

Bremerton Couple Sentenced to Prison 
for Distributing Significant Amounts of 
Fentanyl and Meth

January 30, 2023

Tacoma – A Bremerton, Washington 
couple was sentenced in U.S. District 
Court in Tacoma to lengthy prison terms 
for possession of narcotics with intent 
to distribute, announced U.S. Attorney 
Nick Brown. David Berryhill, 46, was 
sentenced to 90 months in prison and his 
fiancé Jamie Kelly, 50, was sentenced 
to...

Jamestown Woman Pleads Guilty for 
Her Role in Narcotics Conspiracy

January 27, 2023

BUFFALO, N.Y.-U.S. Attorney Trini E. 
Ross announced today that Katie Cal-
imeri, 30, of Jamestown, NY, pleaded 
guilty before U.S. District Judge John 
L. Sinatra, Jr. to conspiracy to possess 
with intent to distribute, and to distribute, 
heroin, fentanyl, and methamphetamine. 
The charge carries a maximum penalty of 
20 years in...

Leader of Lawrence Drug Trafficking 
Organization Sentenced to Over 15 
Years in Prison

January 27, 2023

BOSTON – The leader of a local drug 
trafficking organization (DTO) was 
sentenced yesterday in federal court in 
Boston for trafficking fentanyl, heroin, 
cocaine, carfentanil (a fentanyl ana-
logue) in and around the Lawrence area 
and for possessing a loaded firearm in 
furtherance of his DTO’s operations. Luis 
Manuel Rodriguez Then...

Brooklyn Man Indicted for Distribut-
ing Fentanyl and Cocaine Base

January 27, 2023

BURLINGTON, Vt. - The Office of the 
United States Attorney for the District 
of Vermont announced that Demetrius 
Thompson, aka “Tone,” 44, of Brook-
lyn, New York was arrested yesterday 
in Rutland, Vermont. On December 14, 
2022, Thompson had been indicted by 
the federal grand jury for distributions of 
fentanyl and...
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Convicted Felon Indicted for Drug and 
Firearm Offenses

January 27, 2023

BOSTON – A repeat convicted felon has 
been charged by a federal grand jury in 
a superseding indictment on firearm and 
drug offenses. Christian Soares, a/k/a 
“Eazy,” 29, of Brockton, was indicted on 
two counts of being a felon in possession 
of a firearm and ammunition; one count 
of possessing...

Two Sentenced in Heroin and Fentanyl 
Trafficking Conspiracy

January 27, 2023

BOSTON – Two Worcester residents 
have been sentenced for their roles in a 
drug trafficking conspiracy involving fen-
tanyl and heroin. Antonio Rosario Garcia, 
a/k/a “Animal,” 40, was sentenced by 
U.S. District Court Judge Timothy S. 
Hillman to 80 months in prison and 
four years of supervised release. Cintia 
Franco, 32...

Nashua Man Sentenced to 72 Months 
for Possession of Meth and Fentanyl 
with Intent to Distribute and Carrying 
a Firearm While Dealing Drugs

January 27, 2023

CONCORD, N.H. – David Lamoureux, 
34, of Nashua has been sentenced to 72 
months in federal prison for two counts 
of possession with intent to distribute 
methamphetamine and fentanyl, and for 
possessing a firearm in furtherance of 
drug trafficking, United States Attorney 
Jane E. Young announced. According to 
court documents...

Rochester Woman Pleads Guilty to 
Conspiracy to Distribute Fentanyl and 
Methamphetamine

January 27, 2023

CONCORD, N.H. – Jennelle Brown, 38, 
of Rochester, pleaded guilty in federal 
court today to conspiracy to distribute 
controlled substances, United States 
Attorney Jane E. Young announced 
today. According to court documents and 
statements made in court, Brown and her 
co-defendant sold drugs multiple times 
from their hotel room in...

Three Fugitives Arrested on Federal 
Drug Charges in Westmore, Vermont

January 27, 2023

BURLINGTON, Vt. - The Office of the 
United States Attorney for the District 
of Vermont stated that Vermont resident 
Michelle Provencher (also known as Mi-
chelle Hall)—24, originally of Irasburg, 
Vermont—was arrested and held in fed-
eral custody on Friday, January 13, 2023, 
following the search of a rented Airbnb 
residence in...

Three New Yorkers Sentenced on Drug 
Trafficking Charges

January 27, 2023

BURLINGTON, Vt. - The United States 
Attorney’s Office announced that Oscar 
Maldonado, 41, Jamal Jones, 34, and 
Curtis Christian, 31, all of New York 
City, were recently sentenced in United 
States District Court in Rutland follow-
ing their guilty pleas to charges that they 
conspired to distribute heroin, fentanyl, 
cocaine and...

Five Arrested for Drug Trafficking in 
Chittenden County

January 27, 2023

BURLINGTON, Vt. – The U.S. Attor-
ney’s Office for the District of Vermont 
announced the recent arrests of five men 
with ties to Philadelphia on drug related 
charges. Ronald Harris, aka Rizz, was 
arrested January 17 following his in-
dictment for a drug conspiracy spanning 
nearly two years. Rasheed Stokes-John-
son, aka Slay...

New Haven Man who Crashed Mini-
van into DEA Special Agents Charged 
with Narcotics Distribution Offense

January 27, 2023

NEW HAVEN, Conn. - Vanessa Roberts 
Avery, United States Attorney for the 
District of Connecticut, Brian D. Boyle, 
Special Agent in Charge of the Drug 
Enforcement Administration for New En-
gland, and New Haven Police Chief Karl 
Jacobson announced that a federal grand 
jury in Hartford returned an indictment 
charging DERRICK...

Lowell Man Sentenced for Fentanyl 
Distribution Conspiracy

January 27, 2023

BOSTON – A Lowell man was sen-
tenced on Jan. 20, 2023 in federal court 
in Boston for his role in a conspiracy to 
distribute fentanyl. Jonathan Bermudez, 
25, was sentenced by U.S. District Court 
Judge Leo T. Sorokin to time served 
(approximately 22 months in prison) and 
eight years of...

New Britain Man Pleads Guilty To 
Fentanyl Distribution And Firearm 
Possession Charges

January 27, 2023

NEW BRITAIN, Conn. - Vanessa Rob-
erts Avery, United States Attorney for 
the District of Connecticut, and Brian 
D. Boyle, Special Agent in Charge of 
the Drug Enforcement Administration 
for New England, today announced that 
RAFAEL MARTINEZ, 31, of New Brit-
ain, waived his right to be indicted and 
pleaded guilty in...

Rochester Man Sentenced to 70 
Months For Distributing Fentanyl

January 27, 2023

CONCORD, N.H. – Justin Smith, 34, 
of Rochester was sentenced today to 70 
months in federal prison for one count 
of distributing 40 grams and more of 
fentanyl, United States Attorney Jane E. 
Young announced. According to court 
documents and statements made in court, 
on August 27, 2019, at the...

Three More Indicted in Drug-traffick-
ing Conspiracy

January 26, 2023

KANSAS CITY, Mo. – Three more de-
fendants have been indicted as part of an 
investigation into an armed and violent 
drug-trafficking organization operating 
in the Kansas City, Mo., metropolitan 
area. Anthony D. Harris, 40, and Latrell 
O. Dean, 19, both of Grandview, Mo., 
and Seville S. Gardner, 37, address 
unknown...
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DEA Washington Division Announces 
the Seizure of Over 8 Million of Deadly 
Doses of Fentanyl in 2022

January 26, 2023

Washington DC – The Drug Enforcement 
Administration’s (DEA) Washington 
Division seized over 8.3 million poten-
tially deadly doses of fentanyl in 2022. 
The division, which covers the District of 
Columbia, Maryland and Virginia confis-
cated nearly 160,000 fake pills containing 
fentanyl, and more than 250 pounds of 
fentanyl powder throughout the year...

Culpeper Couple Sentenced to 9 Years 
for Fentanyl and Methamphetamine 
Conspiracy

January 25, 2023

Charlottesville, Va.,– A Culpeper, Vir-
ginia man, who conspired with others, 
including his wife, to sell multiple 
kilograms of methamphetamine as well 
as thousands of counterfeit pills contain-
ing fentanyl, was sentenced this week to 
9 years in federal prison. Fahid Rashid, 
32, pled guilty in November 2022 to one 
count of...

Madera Fentanyl Trafficker Sentenced 
to 7 Years in Prison

January 25, 2023

SACRAMENTO, Calif. — Alfredo 
Sanchez, 43, of Madera, was sentenced 
yesterday to seven years in prison for 
possession with intent to distribute 
fentanyl, U.S. Attorney Phillip A. Talbert 
and Drug Enforcement Administration 
Acting Special Agent in Charge Bob P. 
Beris announced. According to court 
documents, Sanchez provided his co-de-
fendant, Saybyn...

Honduran Man Arrested in Portland 
Trafficking Rainbow Fentanyl and 
Firearms Is Charged in Federal Court

January 25, 2023

PORTLAND, Ore.—A Honduran man 
residing in Portland is facing federal 
charges after he was arrested moving two 
kilograms of rainbow-colored fentan-
yl and several firearms between two 
Portland-area motels. Jose Isidro Zuniga 
Torres, 47, has been charged by criminal 
complaint with conspiracy to possess and 
possess with intent to distribute fentan-
yl...

Head of Fort Worth Drug Trafficking 
Organization Charged

January 23, 2023

DALLAS, TX - The head of a Fort Worth 
drug trafficking operation and his associ-
ate have been federal charged, announced 
Special Agent in Charge Eduardo A. 
Chávez Leeroy Marquee Jones, aka 
Aladdin, 32, and Christopher Antwuan 
George, 21, were charged via criminal 
complaint with conspiracy to possess 
with intent to...

Mexican National Pleads Guilty to Dis-
tributing Fentanyl and Fentanyl-Re-
lated Substance

January 23, 2023

FRESNO, Calif. — Oscar Arturo Salo-
mon Perez, aka Jesus Ramos, aka Jesus 
Rodriguez-Ramos, 48, a native and citi-
zen of Mexican, pleaded guilty today to 
distributing fentanyl and p‑fluorofentan-
yl, an analogue of fentanyl, U.S. Attorney 
Phillip A. Talbert and Drug Enforcement 
Administration Acting Special Agent in 
Charge Bob P. Beris announced...

Oakland Resident Sentenced to Three 
Years for Selling Fentanyl and Meth-
amphetamine in San Francisco’s 
Tenderloin

January 23, 2023

SAN FRANCISCO – Alex Murillo was 
sentenced today to 36 months in federal 
prison for selling fentanyl and metham-
phetamine in San Francisco’s Tender-
loin District, announced United States 
Attorney Stephanie M. Hinds and Drug 
Enforcement Administration (DEA) Act-
ing Special Agent in Charge Bob P. Beris. 
The sentence was handed down by...

Man Convicted of All Charges Related 
to One Fatal, Two Nonfatal Fentanyl 
Overdoses

January 20, 2023

ST. LOUIS – A jury in U.S. District 
Court in St. Louis on Friday found a man 
who provided the fentanyl that caused 
one fatal and two nonfatal overdoses in 
St. Charles, Missouri, in 2020 guilty of 
all charges. Ledra A. Craig, 46, of Wright 
City, was found guilty of...

Tucson Man Sentenced to Nine Years 
for Conspiracy to Distribute Fentanyl

January 20, 2023

TUCSON, Ariz. – Last week, Francisco 
Pantoja, 25, of Tucson, Arizona, was 
sentenced by United States District 
Judge John C. Hinderaker to nine years 
in prison, followed by three years of 
supervised release. Pantoja pleaded guilty 
to Conspiracy to Distribute Fentanyl in 
connection with the overdose death of a 
young...

Undocumented Man Gets 46 Months 
in Prison for Trafficking Fentanyl

January 19, 2023

EAST ST. LOUIS, Ill. – A man origi-
nally from Mexico was sentenced to 46 
months in federal prison in a U.S. District 
Court on Wednesday after admitting 
to possessing hundreds of grams of a 
controlled substance containing fentanyl 
with intent to distribute. Luciano Gome-
zllanos-Martinez, also known as Joaquin 
Navarez-Urena, pled...

Arizona Woman Charged for Traf-
ficking Fentanyl and Heroin on I-5 in 
Oregon

January 19, 2023

PORTLAND, Ore.—An Arizona woman 
is facing federal charges after she was 
caught trafficking approximately 45,000 
counterfeit oxycodone pills containing 
fentanyl and several additional pounds of 
bulk heroin on Interstate 5 near Salem, 
Oregon. Nancy Garcia, 47, of Yuma 
County, Arizona, has been charged by 
criminal complaint with possessing with 
intent...

Two Oakland Residents Indicted 
Following Seizures of Fentanyl, Heroin 
and Cocaine

January 13, 2023

SAN FRANCISCO – Melvin Alexis 
Diaz Arteaga appeared in federal court 
to face an indictment charging him with 
conspiracy to distribute fentanyl and 
possessing fentanyl, heroin, and cocaine 
with the intent to distribute it, and Luis 
Almicar Erazo-Centeno also appeared to 
face the indictment’s charges against him 
of possession of...
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Oakland Resident Who Sold Fentanyl 
in San Francisco’s Tenderloin Sen-
tenced to Four Years

January 13, 2023

SAN FRANCISCO – Jose Alvarado, 
a/k/a Chepe, was sentenced today to 48 
months in federal prison for distribution 
of fentanyl in San Francisco’s Tenderloin 
District and for possession with the intent 
to distribute fentanyl, announced Unit-
ed States Attorney Stephanie M. Hinds 
and Drug Enforcement Administration 
(DEA) Acting Special Agent in...

Greene County Man Indicted for Pos-
sessing Over 10,000 Fentanyl Pills and 
a Kilogram of Fentanyl Powder

January 12, 2023

Charlottesville, Va.- A federal grand jury 
in Charlottesville, Virginia returned an 
indictment yesterday charging a Greene 
County man with conspiracy to possess 
with the intent to distribute fentanyl, 
methamphetamine, heroin, and cocaine 
- among other charges - after officers 
found more than 10,000 fentanyl pills in 
his possession, as well...

Indiana Man Sentenced to 15 Years for 
Meth Trafficking

January 12, 2023

SOUTH BEND, Ind. – Alfred A. Cooke, 
Assistant Special Agent in Charge of 
Drug Enforcement Administration-Mer-
rillville, Indiana, and U.S. Attorney Clif-
ford D. Johnson for the Northern District 
of Indiana announced that Shaquille Del-
aney, 32, of South Bend, was sentenced 
by U.S. District Court Judge Damon R. 
Leichty after pleading guilty...

Armed Indianapolis Drug Dealer 
Sentenced to Over 15 Years in Federal 
Prison for Trafficking Fentanyl, Hero-
in and Cocaine

January 11, 2023

INDIANAPOLIS - Michael Gannon, 
Assistant Special Agent in Charge of 
Drug Enforcement Administration-In-
dianapolis, and U.S. Attorney Zachary 
A. Myers for the Southern District of 
Indiana announced that Frank Nelson, 
45, of Indianapolis, was sentenced to 188 
months in federal prison for possession 
with intent to distribute fentanyl. Accord-
ing to court...

Jamestown Woman Pleads Guilty for 
Her Role in Selling Fentanyl that Led 
to a Death

January 10, 2023

BUFFALO, N.Y. - U.S. Attorney Trini E. 
Ross announced today that Alisha Centi, 
28, of Jamestown, NY, pleaded guilty be-
fore U.S. District Judge John L. Sinatra, 
Jr. to conspiracy to possess with intent 
to distribute, and to distribute, heroin, 
fentanyl, and methamphetamine, which 
carries a maximum penalty of 20 years...

Renton, Washington Resident Sen-
tenced to 10 Years in Prison for Drug 
Trafficking

January 10, 2023

SEATTLE – A Renton, Washington 
resident who continued to deal drugs 
and possess firearms after many of his 
coconspirators were arrested and charged 
federally, was sentenced today in U.S. 
District Court in Seattle to ten years in 
prison. Gerson Alberto Flores-Rivera, 28, 
pleaded guilty in May 2022 to distribu-
tion of...

Three Fentanyl Traffickers Sentenced 
to Federal Prison

January 09, 2023

ORLANDO, Fla. – U.S. District Judge 
Carlos E. Mendoza has sentenced Luis 
Omar Rosa Cotto (32, Orlando), Ale-
jandro Acevedo Luna (34, Apopka), and 
Juan Carlos Garcia (38, Apopka) to fed-
eral prison for their roles in a conspiracy 
to distribute fentanyl. Luis Omar Rosa 
Cotto Pleaded guilty on July 12, 2022...

DEA Rocky Mountain Division An-
nounces Record Fentanyl Seizures in 
2022

January 09, 2023

DENVER –The Drug Enforcement Ad-
ministration’s Rocky Mountain Division 
seized over 5.8 million potentially deadly 
doses of fentanyl in 2022. The division, 
which covers the states of Colorado, 
Montana, Utah, and Wyoming, seized 
nearly two million fentanyl pills and 
more than 150 pounds of fentanyl pow-
der in 2022. Last month, DEA...

Woodbridge Man Pleads Guilty to 
Distributing Narcotics to 14-Year-Old

January 06, 2023

ALEXANDRIA, Va. – A Woodbridge 
man pleaded guilty yesterday to distribut-
ing a Schedule II controlled substance to 
a person under age twenty-one. Ac-
cording to court documents, in April of 
2022, Latae’veion Woods, 21, sold pills 
purporting to be Percocet to a 14-year-
old, who died of a fentanyl overdose 
approximately five...

Fentanyl Distribution Nets West Texas 
Man 12 Years in Federal Prison

January 06, 2023

MIDLAND, Texas – An Odessa man 
was sentenced yesterday to 151 months 
in prison for distributing fentanyl. In late 
2021, agents with the Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) received infor-
mation that Jesus Arevalo, 44, received 
and distributed kilograms of cocaine and 
fentanyl in the Midland – Odessa region. 
The DEA and...

Springfield Man Sentenced to Nearly 
Seven Years in Prison for Distributing 
Fentanyl

January 05, 2023

BOSTON – A Springfield man was 
sentenced yesterday in federal court in 
Worcester for drug trafficking charges in-
volving fentanyl. Juan Jimenez, 48, was 
sentenced by U.S. Senior District Court 
Judge Timothy S. Hillman to 83 months 
in prison and four years of supervised 
release. In April 2022, Jimenez pleaded 
guilty...

Meriden Man Pleads Guilty to Fentan-
yl Distribution Charge

January 05, 2023

MERIDEN, Conn. - Vanessa Roberts 
Avery, United States Attorney for the 
District of Connecticut, announced 
that GERARDO NUNEZ-IRIZARRY, 
also known as “Indio,” 44, of Meriden, 
pleaded guilty today before U.S. District 
Judge Jeffrey A. Meyer in New Haven 
to possession with intent to distribute 40 
grams or more of fentanyl...
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DEA New York and NYC’s Office of 
the Special Narcotics Prosecutor Seize 
Record Amounts of Fentanyl-Laced, 
Fake Prescription Pills and Fentanyl 
Powder During 2022

January 05, 2023

NEW YORK CITY – The Drug Enforce-
ment Administration, New York Division 
and the New York City’s Office of the 
Special Narcotics Prosecutor announce 
record amounts of fentanyl-laced, fake 
prescription pills and fentanyl powder 
seized in New York during 2022. “Thou-
sands of New Yorkers are mourning 
precious lives claimed by deadly...

Former Portsmouth, New Hampshire 
Man Sentenced to 84 Months for Drug 
Trafficking

January 05, 2023

CONCORD, N.H. - Robert Corson, 34, 
formerly of Portsmouth, New Hampshire 
was sentenced to 84 months in federal 
prison for drug trafficking, United States 
Attorney Jane E. Young announced today. 

According to court documents and state-
ments made in court, in April and May 
2021, Corson sold quantities of metham-
phetamine and...

DEA El Paso Division Announces the 
Seizure of Over 9 Million Deadly Doses 
of Fentanyl in 2022

January 04, 2023

El Paso – A few weeks ago, the Drug 
Enforcement Administration announced 
the seizure of over 50.6 million fentan-
yl-laced, fake prescription pills and more 
than 10,000 pounds of fentanyl powder 
this calendar year. The El Paso Division, 
which covers West Texas and the whole 
state of New Mexico, seized 2,886,783...

Norwalk Man Sentenced to 12 Years in 
Federal Prison for Drug Offenses

January 04, 2023

NORWALK, Conn. - Vanessa Roberts 
Avery, United States Attorney for the 
District of Connecticut, announced that 
TAJH WILEY, also known as “Yung,” 

27, of Norwalk, was sentenced by U.S. 
District Judge Janet Bond Arterton in 
New Haven to 144 months of imprison-
ment, followed by four years of super-
vised release, for...

Dominican Man Indicted for Illegally 
Reentering United States and Distrib-
uting Fentanyl

January 03, 2023

BOSTON – A Dominican man has 
been indicted by a federal grand jury for 
allegedly reentering the United States 
and distributing fentanyl after previously 
being deported. Juan Carlos Santos-Oc-
asio, a/k/a “Cristhian Aybar-Done,” 40, 
was indicted on one count of distribution 
and possession with intent to distribute 40 
grams or more...

United States Drug Enforcement Ad-
ministration. Press Releases | DEA.
gov. (n.d.). Retrieved April 7, 2023, 
from https://www.dea.gov/what-we-
do/news/press-releases 
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Chief of Police Joe Carey
Brodnax Police Department, VA
EOW: Friday, December 16, 2022
Cause: Struck by vehicle

Detective Paul Daniel Newell
Benton County Sheriff's Office, AR
EOW: Saturday, December 17, 2022
Cause: Motorcycle crash

Deputy Sheriff Corey D. McElroy
Garrett County Sheriff's Office, MD
EOW: Wednesday, December 21, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

Corporal Ray Charles Hamilton
Okaloosa County Sheriff's Office, FL
EOW: Saturday, December 24, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Deputy Sheriff Isaiah Cordero
Riverside County Sheriff's Department, CA
EOW: Thursday, December 29, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Chief of Police Justin McIntire
Brackenridge Borough Police Department, PA
EOW: Monday, January 2, 2023
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer Carl Douglas Kimball
St. Francisville Police Department, LA
EOW: Thursday, January 12, 2023
Cause: COVID19

Deputy Sheriff Darnell Calhoun
Riverside County Sheriff's Department, CA
EOW: Friday, January 13, 2023
Cause: Gunfire

Supervisory Officer Jacqueline Montanaro
United States Department of Homeland 
Security - Customs and Border Protection - 
Office of Field Operations, US
EOW: Saturday, January 14, 2023
Cause: Fire

Master Patrol Officer Clarence L.  
"CJ" Williams
Cairo Police Department, GA
EOW: Saturday, January 28, 2023
Cause: Duty related illness

Police Officer Gonzalo Carrasco, Jr.
Selma Police Department, CA
EOW: Tuesday, January 31, 2023
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer Sean L. Sluganski
McKeesport Police Department, PA
EOW: Monday, February 6, 2023
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer Peter E. C. Jerving
Milwaukee Police Department, WI
EOW: Tuesday, February 7, 2023
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer Charles Herring
Pembroke Pines Police Department, FL
EOW: Thursday, February 9, 2023
Cause: Motorcycle crash

Police Officer Jordan Jackson
Bellevue Police Department, WA
EOW: Monday, November 21, 2022
Cause: Motorcycle crash

Deputy Sheriff Christopher Taylor
Charlotte County Sheriff's Office, FL
EOW: Tuesday, November 22, 2022
Cause: Vehicular assault

Detective Sergeant Frank Gualdino
Yonkers Police Department, NY
EOW: Thursday, December 1, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

Deputy Sheriff José Angel DeLeon
Warren County Sheriff's Office, NC
EOW: Sunday, December 4, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

Border Patrol Agent Raul Humberto 
Gonzalez, Jr.
United States Department of Homeland 
Security - Customs and Border Protection - 
United States Border Patrol, US
EOW: Wednesday, December 7, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

Reserve Deputy Brad Miller
Maury County Sheriff's Office, TN
EOW: Monday, December 12, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

Court Services Officer Curtis Matthew 
Worland
Alaska State Troopers, AK
EOW: Tuesday, December 13, 2022
Cause: Animal related

Senior Corrections Officer Scott  
Ozburn Riner
Gwinnett County Department of Corrections, GA
EOW: Tuesday, December 13, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer Branden Paul Estorffe
Bay St. Louis Police Department, MS
EOW: Wednesday, December 14, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Sergeant Steven Robin
Bay St. Louis Police Department, MS
EOW: Wednesday, December 14, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Sergeant Donald Scoby
Stuttgart Police Department, AR
EOW: Thursday, December 15, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Deputy Sheriff Daniel J. Kin
Wyandot County Sheriff's Office, OH
EOW: Thursday, December 15, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

Deputy Sheriff Oscar Yovani Bolanos-
Anavisca, Jr.
Cumberland County Sheriff's Office, NC
EOW: Friday, December 16, 2022
Cause: Vehicular assault

Major Terry Randall "Turtle" Arnold
Cook County Sheriff's Office, GA
EOW: Monday, October 3, 2022
Cause: Heart attack

Deputy Sheriff Blane Lane
Polk County Sheriff's Office, FL
EOW: Tuesday, October 4, 2022
Cause: Gunfire (Inadvertent)

Deputy Sheriff Sidnee Carter
Sedgwick County Sheriff's Office, KS
EOW: Friday, October 7, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

Investigator Myiesha Breanna Stewart
Greenville Police Department, MS
EOW: Tuesday, October 11, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Lieutenant Dustin Demonte
Bristol Police Department, CT
EOW: Wednesday, October 12, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Sergeant Alex Hamzy
Bristol Police Department, CT
EOW: Wednesday, October 12, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer Truong Thai
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, NV
EOW: Thursday, October 13, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer Steven R. Nothem, II
Carrollton Police Department, TX
EOW: Tuesday, October 18, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

Officer Jorge Arias
United States Department of Homeland Security 
- Customs and Border Protection -  
Office of Field Operations, US
EOW: Wednesday, October 19, 2022
Cause: Gunfire (Inadvertent)

Police Officer Logan K. Medlock
London Police Department, KY
EOW: Sunday, October 30, 2022
Cause: Vehicular assault

Lieutenant Kristina Zell
Niagara Falls Police Department, NY
EOW: Monday, November 7, 2022
Cause: COVID19

Criminal Investigator Steven A. Carnes
Tom Green County District Attorney's Office, TX
EOW: Sunday, November 13, 2022
Cause: Heart attack

Police Officer Brandon Tsai
Grand Prairie Police Department, TX
EOW: Monday, November 14, 2022
Cause: Vehicle pursuit

Marine Interdiction Agent Michel O. Maceda
United States Department of Homeland Security 
- Customs and Border Protection -  
Air and Marine Operations, US
EOW: Thursday, November 17, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

XXXX MEMORIAL SECTION
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K9 Blue
Niceville Police Department, FL
EOW: Sunday, August 7, 2022
Cause: Automobile crash

K9 Hannes
Kern County Sheriff's Office, CA
EOW: Thursday, August 18, 2022
Cause: Heatstroke

K9 Axel
Charleston Police Department, WV
EOW: Saturday, August 27, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Lux
Delaware Department of Correction, DE
EOW: Sunday, September 18, 2022
Cause: Heatstroke

K9 Rocket
Metropolitan Police Department, DC
EOW: Monday, September 19, 2022
Cause: Heatstroke

K9 Figo
Georgia State Patrol, GA
EOW: Friday, October 7, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Pepper
Greenville Police Department, NC
EOW: Wednesday, November 16, 2022
Cause: Animal related

K9 Jack
Los Angeles County Sheriff's Department, CA
EOW: Thursday, December 22, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Bluz
Kings County Sheriff's Office, CA
EOW: Thursday, May 12, 2022
Cause: Heatstroke

K9 Drago
Columbia County Sheriff's Office, FL
EOW: Wednesday, June 15, 2022
Cause: Heatstroke

K9 Exo
Pascagoula Police Department, MS
EOW: Thursday, June 23, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Odin
Virginia State Police, VA
EOW: Sunday, June 26, 2022
Cause: Fire

K9 Cannon
Fountain Valley Police Department, CA
EOW: Tuesday, June 28, 2022
Cause: Heatstroke

K9 Drago
Floyd County Sheriff's Office, KY
EOW: Thursday, June 30, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Frankie
Massachusetts State Police, MA
EOW: Tuesday, July 26, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Max
Lake Wales Police Department, FL
EOW: Wednesday, August 3, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer James Muhlbauer
Kansas City Police Department, MO
EOW: Wednesday, February 15, 2023
Cause: Automobile crash

Sergeant Christopher D. Fitzgerald
Temple University Police Department, PA
EOW: Saturday, February 18, 2023
Cause: Gunfire

Police Officer Julian Becerra
Fountain Police Department, CO
EOW: Saturday, February 11, 2023
Cause: Fall

Correctional Officer Jay Miller
Washington State Department of Corrections, WA
EOW: Saturday, February 11, 2023
Cause: COVID19

Police Officer Geoffrey Redd
Memphis Police Department, TN
EOW: Saturday, February 18, 2023
Cause: Gunfire

Detention Officer Kenneth Fowler
Pontotoc County Sheriff's Office, OK
EOW: Sunday, February 19, 2023
Cause: Fall

K9 Beni
Heflin Police Department, AL
EOW: Wednesday, January 5, 2022
Cause: Struck by vehicle

K9 Jedi
Seattle Police Department, WA
EOW: Wednesday, January 5, 2022
Cause: Stabbed

K9 Nitro II
York County Sheriff's Department, NE
EOW: Tuesday, February 8, 2022
Cause: Vehicular assault

K9 Maya
West Jordan Police Department, UT
EOW: Thursday, February 17, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Ciro
Humphreys County Sheriff's Office, TN
EOW: Thursday, March 3, 2022
Cause: Fire

K9 Dash
Shepherdsville Police Department, KY
EOW: Wednesday, March 9, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Major
Franklin County Sheriff's Office, NC
EOW: Sunday, April 10, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Jinx
El Paso County Sheriff's Office, CO
EOW: Monday, April 11, 2022
Cause: Gunfire

K9 Mina
United States Department of Homeland 
Security - Customs and Border Protection - 
United States Border Patrol, US
EOW: Monday, May 2, 2022
Cause: Animal related

XXXX K9 MEMORIAL
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Saint Michael, heaven’s glorious commissioner of police, who once so neatly and successfully 
cleared God’s premises of all its undesirables, look with kindly and professional eyes on your 

earthly force. 
 

Give us cool heads, stout hearts, and uncanny flair for investigation and wise judgment. 
 

Make us the terror of burglars, the friend of children and law-abiding citizens, kind to strangers, 
polite to bores, strict with law-breakers and impervious to temptations. 

 
You know, Saint Michael, from your own experiences with the devil, that the police officer’s lot on 

earth is not always a happy one; but your sense of duty that so pleased God, your hard knocks that 
so surprised the devil, and your angelic self-control give us inspiration. 

 
And when we lay down our night sticks, enroll us in your heavenly force, where we will be as 

proud to guard the throne of God as we have been to guard the city of all the people.

Amen.

A POLICEMAN’S
PRAYER
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Most Wanted Fugitives

Nemesio Oseguera- 
Cervantes

is wanted for the fol-
lowing alleged federal 

violations: 21 USC 84621 
USC 96321 USC 95921 
USC 84121 USC 924.

is wanted for the following 
alleged federal violations: 

The following alleged 
Federal Drug Violations: 1) 
18 USC Sec 1962 (d) RICO 
Conspiracy; 2) 21 USC 846 
and 841 (a)(1) Conspiracy 

to Possess Controlled 
Substance, over 5 kilograms 
of cocaine and over 1000 ki-
lograms of marijuana; 3) 21 
USC 963952(a) and 960(a)
(b)(1)(B) and (G); Conspi-

racy to import a controlled 
substance, over 5 kilograms 

of cocaineand over 1,000 
kilograms of marijuana;4)18 

USC 1956 Conspiracy to 
launder money instru-

ments; 5)18 USC 2 & 924(o) 
Conspiracy to possess 

firearms in furtherance of 
drug trafficking crimes and 

aid and abet; 6 thru 10) 
18 USC 2 & 1959(a)(1)&(5); 

Violent Crimes in aid of rac-
keteering activityand aiding 

and abetting; 11) 21 USC 
848 (e)(1)(A) Murder while 
engaging in or working in 

furtherance of a conti-
nuing criminal enterprise 
or drug trafficking; 12) 21 
USC 848(b)(1) and (2)(A) 

Engaging in a continuing 
criminal enterprise in furt-

herance of drug trafficking; 
13) 18 USC 956 Conspiracy 
to kill in a foreign country; 
and (14) 18 USC 2 & 1201 
Kidnaping and aiding and 

abetting.

Ismael Zambada 
Garcia

is wanted for the following 
alleged federal violations: 

Conspiracy to Possess with 
Intent to Distribute Controlled 
Substance; Attempt/Conspi-

racy-Controlled Substance-Im-
port/Export with Intent to 

Distribute.

Jesus Alfredo 
Guzman-Salazar

is wanted for the following 
alleged federal violations: 

Distribution.

Rommel Pascua 
Cipriano

is wanted for the following 
alleged federal violations: 

Cocaine importation; 
racketeering conspiracy; 

possession and conspiracy 
to possess machine guns.

Yulan Andony 
Archaga Carias

is wanted for the following 
alleged federal violations: 
Conspiracy to Distribute 
Heroin, 21 USC 846;Aid 
& Abet Distribution of 

Heroin, 841(a)(1) and 18 
USC 2;Aid & Abet Carrying 

of Firearm During Drug 
Trafficking, 18 USC 924(c)
(1);Use of Minors in Drug 
Trafficking, 21 USC 861(a)

(1).

Kenny Jing Ang 
Chen

is wanted for the following 
alleged federal violations: 21 
USC 846 Conspiracy to Pos-

sess with Intent to Distribute 
heroin, fentanyl, and cocaine.

Julio Alex Diaz

is wanted for the following 
alleged federal violations: 

Title 21 USC 846.

Chuen Yip



www.warriorsgrace.org 
844-927-1413, ext. 101

Helping our veterans, first 
responders, & law enforcement 
transition.

Helping our “WARRIORS”, 
veterans and first responders, 
grow their physical, mental, 
spiritual, and financial 
success. We do this by 
having them commit to 
“The Experience”. 
A program that 
focuses on 
the four core 
areas, inspire, 
educate, 
empower, 
impact.


